KIRTANE (\! PANDIT LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of
K2V2 Technologies Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of K2V2 Technologies Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as
at March 31, 2022, the loss and total comprehensive Income, changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together
with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.
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K2V2 Technologies Private Limited Independent Auditors’ Repart on Financial Statements

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company'’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including
Annexures to Board’s Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s

report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.
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K2V2 Technologies Private Limited Independent Auditors’ Report on Financial Statements

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Kirtane & Pandit LLP
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individ ually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable
user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial

statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
I, As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

Kirtane & Pandit LLP
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f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controis over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal
financial controls over financial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i.  The Company did not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position as at March 31,2022,

ii. The Company did not have any iong-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund during the year.

iv. With respect to clause (e) of Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, as amended

a. The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief,
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company
to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b. Management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.
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c. Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has
caused us believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain

any material mis-statement.

V. There was no dividend declared during the year by the company hence reporting
under Rule 11(f) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014 for compliance

with section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure
B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

3. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Reportin accordance

with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is

in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

For Kirtane & Pandit LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.105215W/W100057
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report to the Members of K2V2 Technologies Private Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub- section
3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of K2V2 TECHNOLOGIES
PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under
Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud

or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the

Company.

Kirtane & Pandit LLP
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company'’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Kirtane & Pandit LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.105215W/W100057
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ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report to the Members of K2V2 TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED of even date)

(a)

(b) 1

(c)

(d)

(e)

(b)

In Respect of records of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

A The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

B The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
Assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us, Property, plant and
equipment were physically verified by the management during the year and no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the
frequency of physical verification of Property, plant and equipment is reasonable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, Company does not hold any immovable
properties. Accordingly, paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, The
Company has not revalued its property plant and Equipment during the year,
Accordingly, Clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us by Management, No
proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)
and rules made thereunder.

The Company is primarily in the business of rendering of services. Accordingly, it does
not hold any physical inventories. Thus, paragraph 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

As informed to us, during any point of time of the year, the company does not have
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crores from banks or financial
institutions. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

Company has not provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans other than
loans and advances to employees as per Company’s policy or advances in the nature
of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or
any other parties. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(c), 3(iii)(d), 3(iii)(e), 3(iii)(f) of
the Order is not applicable.

Kirtane & Pandit LLP
Chartered Accountants
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K2V2 Technologies Private Limited Independent Auditors’ Report on Financial Statements

With respect to reporting under 3(iii)(b) in respect of investment made during the
year and loans and advances given to employees as per company’s policy does not
prima facie prejudicial to the company’s interest of the Company. Further as informed
to us the Company has not provided any guarantees or not provided security in
connection with the loan during the year. Accordingly, reporting with respect to
Loans, Guarantees, securities in connection with the ioan 3(iii)(b) of the Order is not
applicabie

iv. In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013
in respect of investments and loans and advances given to employees as per
Company’s policy. Further the Company has not given any guarantee or security in
connection with a loan to any other body corporate or person. Further company has
not given any loan to directors as per section 185 of the act.

V. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, The
Company has not accepted deposits during the year from the public under Section 73
to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the rules framed
there under or neither has amounts which are deemed to be deposits and therefore,
the paragraph 3 (v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. As informed to us,
no order has been passed against the company, by company law tribunal, RBI or any
other court or any other tribunal.

vi. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government
has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148
of the Act, for the services rendered by the company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(vi) of
the Order is not applicable.

vii. According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory
dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,
including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Service
Tax, Customs Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the
appropriate authorities. There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax,
Customs Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31,2022
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) which have not been
deposited as on March 31, 2022 on account of disputes.

viii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there
are no transactions which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961. Accordingly reporting
under paragraph 3(viii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Kirtane & Pandit LLP
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iX. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
Management, Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other bo rrowings
or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us
company is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
other lender

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
Company has not raised any term loans during the year. Accordingly reporting under
paragraph 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
Company has not raised funds on short term basis which have been utilised for long
term purposes. Accordingly reporting under paragraph 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet
the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures

(f) Company does not have subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.
Accordingly reporting under paragraph 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

X. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly reporting
under paragraph 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) During the year the Company has made private placement of shares during the year
and the requirements of section 42 and section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 have
been complied with and the funds raised have been used for the general business
purposes for which the funds were raised.

As per information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company ar on the
Company been noticed or reported during the year nor have we been informed of any
such case by the Management. Accordingly reporting under paragraph 3(xi)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

Xi. (a)

(b) As perinformation and explanations given to us, No report under sub-section (12) of
section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government
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xil.

Xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

(c)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Whistle blower mechanism is not mandatory for the Company, accordingly the
company has not establish vigil/whistle blower mechanism during the year.
Accordingly reporting under paragraph 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, The
Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under paragraph 3 (xii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The provisions of section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Com pany. According
to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
section 188 of the Act wherever applicable and details of such transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

In our opinion and based on our examination, the company does not have an internal
audit system as it is not required to have an internal audit system as per provisions of
the Companies Act 2013. Accordingly reporting under paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during
the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is
not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, company is not required to be registered
under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

According to the information and explanations given to us, company has not
conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid
Certificate of Registration (CoR)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not a Core
Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of
India.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanation given to us, in the
group (in accordance with Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2016) there are no companies forming part of the promoter/promoter group of the
Company which are CICs.

FRN \¢=

2 il
AR BT Y
S\ PV INUDST W

Kirtane & Pandit LLP c\;& &
',

Chartered Accountants

f@{g}:ﬁ’ Page 12 of 13
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Xvii. According to the information and explanations given to us, company has incurred 659
lakhs cash losses in the financial year and Rs. 7 lakhs in the immediately preceding
financial year.

xviil. There is no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly,
reporting under paragraph 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

XiX. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on
the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
financial statements, and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management
plans we are opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

XX. Provisions of Section 135 of the Companies act is not applicable to Company
Accordingly reporting under paragraph 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

XXI. Company does not have subsidiary, Associate or Joint Venture Company as on 315

March 2022, hence Company is not required to prepare consolidated financial
statements. Accordingly reporting under paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

For Kirtane & Pandit LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.105215W/W100057
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Pune, May 19, 2022
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K2V2 Technologies Private Limited
CIN: U72900PN2019PTC182955
STATEMENT QF FINANCIAL RESULTS

(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

8l no |Particulars Quarter ended Quarter ended Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2022 December 31, 2022 March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
{Audited) (Unaudited) (Audited) (Audited)
1 |lncome
Revenue from operations 733 687 2,107 1,143
Other income 13 15 30 1
Total income 746 702 2,137 1,144
2 |Expenses
Employee benefit expenses 533 482 1,581 708
Finance costs 5 6 30 15
Depreciation and amortization expenses 41 14 74 25
Other expenses 506 321 1,138 423
Total expenses 1,085 823 2,823 1,173
3 |Loss before tax (339) (121) (686) (29)
4 [Tax expenses
Income tax - current - - 6
Deferred tax charge / (benefit) (80) (30) (178) (1)
Total tax (90) (30) (178) 5
5 [Loss after tax (249) (91) (508) (34)
6 |Other comprehensive income / (loss)
(i) ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or
loss {13) 5 (14) (2)
(i) Income tax relating to items that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss 3 (1) 3 .
Total other comprehensive income / {loss) (10) 4 (11) (2)
7 |Total comprehensive income / (loss) (259) (87)[ {519) (36)




K2V2 Technologies Private Limited
CIN: U72900PN201SPTC182955

BALANCE SHEET

(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

[ As at As at
PARTICULARS March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(Audited) (Audited)
ASSETS
1 Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 8 -
(b) Intangible Assets under development 37 352
(c) Right to Use Assets 46 53
(d) Intangible assets 517 -
(e) Deferred tax assets (net) 183 2
(f) Income tax assets (net) 173 48
Total non-current assets 964 455
2  Current assets
(a) Financial assets
(i) Investments 513 -
(i) Trade receivables 716 457
(iii) Loans 1 -
(iv) Cash and cash equivalents 244 55
(v) baignces(other than cash and cash 300 -
equivalents)
(vi) Other financial assels 81 0
(b) Other current assets 34 8
Total current assets 1,889 520
Total Assets 2,853 975
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Equity
Equity share capital 5 3
Other equity 1,679 412
Total equity 1,684 415
2 Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 81 78
(i) Lease Liabilities - 32
(b) Employec Benefit obligations 76 45
Total non-current liabilities 157 155
3 Current liabilities
(a) Financial fiabilities
(1) Borrowings 44 119
(i) Trade payables
a) Dues of micro enterprises and small 50 2
enterprises
b)Dues of creditors other than micro 423 83
enterprises and small enlerprises
(iii) Lease Liabilities 55 3
(W) Other financial liabilities 68 40
(b) Other current liabiities 371 130
(c) Employee Benefit obligations 1 -
Total current liabilities 1,012 405
Total Equity and Liabilities 2,853 BTE'LJ




K2V2 Technologies Private Limited
CIN: U72900PN2018PTC182955

Cash Flow Statement (Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
PARTICULARS As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(Audited) (Audited)
Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before tax (686) (29)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and Amortization expense 74 29
Effects of Prior year items - (3)
Gain on Mutual Funds {(13) =
Interest Income (17) (1)
Finance Costs 30 15
Provision for bad, doubtful debts 42 13
Operating Loss before working capital
changes ) 24

Changes in working capital
Increase/Decrease in

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables (301) (122)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other assets (108) (7)
Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payables 388 33
Increase/ (Decrease) in Other Liabilities 280 36
Cash generated from operations (311) (36)

Income tax (125) {45)
Net cash flows from operating activities (A) (436) (81)

Cash fiows from investing activities

Payment for property, plant and equipment and (277) (149)
intangible assets and CWIP

Investment in Mutual Funds (800) -
Redemption of hutual Funds 300 -

Invastment in Depasits (500) -
Maturily of Deposits 200 -
Interest received 17 ;

Net cash flow from investing activities (B) (1,060) (148)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of equity shares (Net) 1,787 -
Proceeds from Borrowings {net) (72) 197
Interest and other finance charges paid (30) (15)
Net cash flow from financing activities (C) 1,685 182
Netincrease / {decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents (A+B+C) 189 (47)
Cash and cash equivalents at the year beginning 55 102
Cash and cash equivalents at the year end 244 55
Cash and cash equivalents comprise
Balances with banks
(i) Current accounts 171 45
(ii) In Sweep in Fixed Deposits 73 10
Total cash and cash equivalents at year end 244 55 |

Notes :
These financial results in accordance with the Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013("“the Act”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India

=

[

The above results have been reviewed and approved by Board of Directors in the meeting held on 19 May 2022

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of K2V2 Technologies Private Limited

S
i3

Ketan Sabnis

Director (DIN ; 02809471)

Date : May 19, 2022




K2V2 Technologies Private Limited

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022
(All amounts in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note As at 31 As at 31 As at 01
No. March 2022 March 2021 April 2020
I ASSETS
I Non-current Assets
(a)  Property, Plant and Equipment 2 8 - -
(b) Capital Work-in-progress 2 = - =
(¢} Right 1o Use Assets 2 46 53 82
(d)  Other Intangible Assets 3 517 = -
{¢)  Intangible Assets under development 3 37 352 203
(f)  Financial Assers
(iy  Investments 6 = -
(ii) Loans and Advances 7 - -
(8)  Delerred Tax Assets (Net) 8 183 2 I
(h)  Income Tax Assets 11 173 48 9
Total Non-current Assets 964 435 295
2. Current Assets
(1) Inventories
(a)  Financial Assets
() Investments 5 513 = -
(1) Trade Receivables 6 716 457 348
(iii} Cash and Cash equivalents 7 244 55 102
(iv) Balance other than (iii) above 7 300 - ; -
(v)  Loans and Advances 8 1 - l
(vi} Other Financial Asscts 9 81 0 0
(c)  Current Tax Assels (Net) 10 - -
(d)  Other Current Assets 10 34 8 -
Total Current Asscts 1,889 520 451
Total Assets 2,853 975 746
II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Equity
(#)  Equity Share Capital 12 5 3 3
(b)  Other Fquity 13 1,679 412 451
Total Equity 1,684 415 454
2, Liabilitics
Non-current Liabilities
(a)  Financial Lialnlitics
(i) Borrowings 14 81 78 -
(i} Lease Liabilities 13 - 32 63
(i)  Other Financial Liabilitiog
(b)  Provisions 16 76 45 30
(c)  Deferred Tax Liabilities {Net) - &
(¢)  Other Non-current Liabilitics 20
Total Non-current Liabilities 157 155 9
Current Liabilities
(0)  Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 14 44 119 =
(ii} Trade Payables 17
- Total outstanding dues of Micro and 50 2 8
- Toml outstanding dues other than 423 83 44
Micro and
(i) Other Financial Liabilities 18 68 40 47
fivy Lease Liabilitios 35 31 21
(b)  Other Currint Linbilities 19 37| 130 79
(¢)  Current Tax Liabilitics (Net) 8 . "
(¢)  Provisions 16 ] - o
Total Current Liabilities 1,012 405 199
Total Liabilities 1,169 560 292
Total Equity and Liabilitics 2,853 975 746

See accompanying notes formine part of the Financial Statements
panying !

As per our separate report of even date.

For KIRTANE & PANDIT LLP
Chartered Accountants
[FRN 5215WAVI00057]

=
Tarag Pansare

Partner
Membership No.117309

Place: Pune
Date : 19/05/2022

On behalf of the Board of Dircctors

Ketan Sabnis
Director
DIN: 02809471

Vinayak Katkar
Director
DIN: 02827601

Placce: Pune
Date : 19/05/2022

Place: Pune
Date : 19/05/2022



" K2V2 Technologies Private Limited

¥~ Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022
" » (All amounts in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note For the year For the year
No. ended 31 ended 31
March 2022 March 2021
1 INCOME
Revenue from Operations 20 2,107 1,143
Other Income 21 30 1
Total Income 2,137 1,144
11 EXPENSES
Employee benefits expense 22 1,581 706
Finance costs 23 30 15
Depreciation and Amorlization expense 24 74 29
Other expenses 25 1,138 423
Total Expenses 2,823 1,173
I Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items and tax (686) (29)
v Exceptional Items ) i
¥ Profit / (Loss) Before Tax (686) (29)
VI Tax Expense 11
Current Tax i G
Deferred Tax (178) (n
Taxation in respect of earlier Years 0 .
Total Tax Expense (178) 5
VII  Profit / (Loss) for the year (508) (34)

VIII  Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss

(i) Re-measurements of net defined benefit liability (14) (2)
(i) Equity instrument through Other Comprehensive
Income ) )
(14) @

Incame tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to
Profit or Loss
(i) Taxes on re-measurements of net defined benefit

liability
(ii) Taxes on Equity instrument through Other <
Comprehensive Income i
3 .
Total Other Comprehensive Income (11 2)
‘Total Comprehensive Income for the year [comprising
IX Profit / (Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income for the (519) (36)'
vearl
. Basic and Diluted Earnings per equity share
X [Nominal value per share T 10] ¥ . (1,353) (139)

See accompanying notes forming part of the Financial Statements

As per our separate report of even date, On behalf of the Board of Directors

For KIRTANE & PANDIT LLP
Chartered Accountants
[FRN : 105215W/W100057]

arag Pansare Ketan Sabnis Vinayak Katkar
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 117309 DIN: 02809471 DIN: 02827601
Place: Pune Place: Pune Place: Pune

Date : 19/05/2022 Date : 19/05/2022 Date : 19/05/2022



- K2V2 Technologies Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in * Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year For the year
ended 31 ended 31
Mar 2022 Mar 2021
Cash flow from Operating Activities:
Profit before tax (686) (29)
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and Amortization expense 74 29
Effects of Prior year items - (3)
Gain on Mutual Funds (13) -
Interest Income (17) (N
Finance Costs 30 15
Bad Debis including Provision for doubtful receivable 42 13
Operating Profit before Working Capital adjustments (570) 24
Working Capital adjustments
(Increase)/Decrease in
Trade Receivables (301) (122)
Other Financial Asscts ' (108) (7)
Trade Payables 388 33
Financial and Other Liabilities 280 36
Cash generated from Operations
Income Tax paid (Net) (125) (45)
Net Cash flow from/(used in) Operating Activities (436) (81)
Cash flow from Investing Activities:
Payments for Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets 277y (149)
Investment of Mutual Funds (800) -
Redemption of Mutual Funds 300 &
Investment in Fixed Deposit {(500) .
Maturity of Fixed Deposits 200 _
Interest Income on Fixed Deposits 17 1
Net cash flow from /(used in) Investing Activitics (1,000) (148)
Cash flow from Financing Activities:
Proceeds from issue of Share Capital (net) 1,787 -
Proceeds from / (Repayment of) borrowings (Net) (72) 197
Interest paid (30) (15)
Net Cash fTow from/(used in) Financing Activities 1,685 182
Net Increase/(Decreasce) in Cash and Cash equivalents 189 47)
Cash and Cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year 55 102
Cash and Cash cquivalents at end of the financial year 244 55

Cash and Cash equivalents as per Note 7
On behalf of the Board of Directors

As per our separate report of even date.

For KIRTANE & PANDIT LLP %de
Chartered Accountants f9‘}07”‘} (—2,\
[FRN : 105215W/W100057) 8o ‘,M
Ketan Sabnis Vinayak Katkar
— Director Director
—Larag-Pamsare FBN DIN: 02309471 DIN: 02827601
i 105215/
Membership No.117309 W100057 Place: Pune Place: Pune
Date : 19/05/2022 Date : 19/05/2022

Place: Pune
Date : 19/05/2022
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K2Vv2 Technologies Priv

ate Limited

_» Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 Mar 2022

“{All amounts in ¥ Lakhs unless oth

erwise stated)

A. Equity Share Capital

Particulars Asat 31 Asat3] Asat ] j
March 2022 March 2021 April 2020

Opening Balance 3 3
Increase during the year 2 -
Closing Balance 5 3 3
B. Other Equity

Particulars Reserves and Surplus Totalj

Securities Free Retained  [Share options
Premium Reserve carnings Outstanding
g account

Balance as at 1 April 2020 - 322 129 - 451
Effect of Prior year items s . (3) . N
Restated Balance as at 1 April i 393 126 i 45
2020 -
Profit/ (Loss) for the period - 2 (34) . (34)
Increase during the year 0
Other Comprehensive Income (Net
of tax) ) @ i @
Dividends (including dividend
distribution tax) i ) ) ) )
Balance as at 31 March 2021 - 322 90 - 412
Balance as at 1 April 2021 - 322 90 - 412
Increase during the year 1,798 - - 1 1,799
Less : Share Issuc Expenses (13) (13)
Profit/ (Loss) for the period (508) (508)
Other Comprehensive Income (Net
ol tax) 18 (n
Dividends (including dividend
distribution tax) i
Balance as at 31 Mar 2022 1,785 322 (429) 1 1,679

As per our separate report of even
date.

For KIRTANE & PANDIT LLP
Chartered Accountants
[FRN : 10521 5W/W100057)

oL
’arag Pansarc

Partner j 052154/
Membership No. 117309 Nit0iEs

Place: Pune
Date : 19/05,2022

2
Lo2”
Ketan Sabnis
Director
DIN: 02809471
Place: Pune
Date : 19/05/2022

Dircctor
DIN: 02827601
Place: Pune

Date : 19/05/2022




Corporate Overview
K2V2 Technologies Private Limited was incorporated on March 25th, 2019 to carry on the business of development, marketing,

selling, trading and dealing in Software, Software Development and technology products systems and to act as technicians,
consultants in the field of computer software development and hardware products.

1) Significant Accounting Policies

Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Company comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under
Section 133 of the Companics Act, 2013 (the Act) [the Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2016 (as amended) and
other relevant provisions of the Act

All assets and liabilitics have been classified ag current or non-current as per the Company’s operating cycle and other criteria set
out in the Schedule 117 to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the hature of servicesand the time between the rendering of service
and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose
of current and non- current classification of assets and liabilities

Basis of measurement
The financial statements has ¢ been prepared on a historical cost basis, except certain financial instruments, Lease Liability, defined
benefit plans, Share based payment transactions, which are measured at fair value,

Use of judgements, estimates and assumptions

Information regarding reasonable and prudent judgments, estimates and assumptions in conformity with Ind_AS are included in
relevant notes

The areas involving critical estimates and judgments are:

Residual value and useful life of property, plant and equipment

Estimation of defined employee benefit obligation

Estimation of current tax cxpense and payable

Estimation and underlying assumplions are reviewed on on-going basis. Revision to estimates are recognised prospectively,

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Direct costs are capitalized until the assets are ready for use and include inward freight, and expenses incidental 1o acquisition
and installation. Subsequent expenditures related lo an item of Property, plant and cquipment are added to its book value only if they
increase the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance.

Depreciation on Property. plant and equipment is providedwhen the assets are ready for use on the straight line method,on a pro rata
basis, over the estimated useful lives of assels as per shedule [ of Companies Act, inorder to reflect the period over which the
depreciable assetis expected to be used by the Company.

Depreciation on sale/deduction from property plant andequipment is provided up to the date preceding the dateof sale, deduction as
the case may be. Losses arising fromthe retirement of, and gains or losses arising from disposal ofProperty, plant and equipment
measured as the differencebetween amount realized and net carrying value which arccarried at cost are recagnized in the Statement
of Profit and Loss

Intangible Assets: -

Intangible assets are recognized when the asset s identifiable, is within the control of the Company, probable that [uture economic
benefits attributable to the asset wil] flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be reliably measured,

Expenditure on rescarch activities is recognised in the slatement of profit and loss as incurred. Development expenditure is
capitalised only if the expenditure can be measured reliably, the product or process is technically and commercially feasible, future
economic benefits are probable and the Company intends to complete development and 1o use or sell the asset.




Depreciation& Amortization

Property, Plant and Equipment:

* The Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is provided on Straight Line method and as per Schedule-11 to the Companies
Act, 2013.

Intangible Assets:

* Software and their implementation costs are written off over the period of 5 years.

* Technical Know-how acquired and internally generated is amortized over the estimated vseful life of the assets, not exceeding 10
years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each Balance Sheet date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, management estimates the recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s net selling price and
value in use. Value in use is the present value ofestimated future cash flows expected to arise from thecontinuing use of an asset and
from its disposal at the endof its useful life. If the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment loss is
recognized inthe Profit and Loss Statement to the extent carrying amoun texceeds recoverable amount, Assessment is also doneat
cach Balance sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognized for an asset inprior accounting
periods may no longer exists or may have decreased.

Leases

Company as 2 lessor

At the inception of the lease the Company classifies each of its leases as cither an operating lease or a finance lease. The Company
recognizes lease payments received underoperating leases as income on a straight- line basis overthe lease term. In casc of a finance
lease, finance income is recognized over the lease term based on a pattern reflecting a constunt periodic rate of return on the lessor’s
netinvestment in the lease

Employee henefits

short-term obligations

The undiscounted amount of short term cmployee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees is
recognized in the year during which the cmployee rendered the services. These benefils comprise compensated absences such as
paid annual leave and performance incentive

other long-term employee benefit obligations

Defined contribution plan

The Company has defined contribution plans for post employment benefits in the form of provident fund, employces' state
insurance, labour welfare fund, pension fuad (NPS) and superannuation fund in India which are administered through Government
of India and/or Life Insurance Corporation of India cLICY:

Defined benelit plans

Gratuity: The Company has defined benefit plans for post employment benefits in the form of gratuity for its employces in India,
The gratuity scheme of the Company is administered through Life Insurance Corporalicn of India (LIC). Liability for defined
benefit plans is provided on the basis of actuarial valuations, as at the Balance Sheet date, carried out by an independent actuary.
The actuarial valuation method used by indcpendent actuary for measuring the liability is the projected unit credit method. Actuarial
gains and losses are recognized immediately in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) as income or expense (net of taxes),

Compensated absences: The employees of the Company are also entitled for other long-term benefit in the form of compensated
absences as per the policy of the Company. Leave encashment vests with employees on an annual basis for leave balance above the
upper limit as per the Company's policy. At the time of retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment
leave encashment vests equivalent (o salary payable for number of days of accumulated leave balance subject to an upper limit as
per the Company's policy. Liability for such benefit is provided on the basis of actuarial valuation, as at the Balance Sheet date,
carried out by an independent actuary. The actuarial valuation methed used by independent actuary for measuring the liability is the
projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in the Profit and Loss Statement as income or
expense.

share based payments

Stock options granted to emplovees of the Company under the stock optien scheme are accounted using the fair value method. The
fair valuc of options granted to its employecs is recognized in the statement of profit and loss on a graded vesting basis over the
vesting period of the option.

106215/
W100057




foreign currency transactions
Functional and presentation currency: The financial Statements are prepared in Indian Rupees. The Indian Rupee is the functional
currency of the Company.

Foreign currency transactions and balances: Translation of foreign currency into Indian Rupees has been carried out as under:

a) Both monetary and non-monetary foreign currency assets and liabilitics including contingent liabilities are translated at closing
exchange rates as at the Balance Sheet date.

b} Income and expenditure of transactions are translated at the rate on the date of transaction.

¢) All resulting exchange differences on translation are taken directly to the Statement of Profit and Loss

fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, investments at fair value at cach Balance Sheet date. Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an assct or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place cither:

*In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability accessible to the Company,

All assets and liabilitics for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the standalone financial staterents arc categorized within
the fair valuc hicrarchy, described as follows, based on rhe lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

r Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilitics

* Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable

* Level 3 — Valuation echniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable
The management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement and disclosure. For the purpose
of fair value disclosures, the Company has delermined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and
risks of the asset or lability and the level of (he fair value hicrarchy as explained above.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from sale of services is recignised as per recognition criteria under Ind AS 115, Revenue is measured at the fair value of
the consideration received or receivable, Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of Goods and Service Taxes (GST), Returns,
Discounts. The Company recognizes revenue no significant obligation is pending and the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured and it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company.

The unbilled revenue is recognised when services are rendered for reporting period but inveices are not raised. Similarly. Pre-
received income is recognised when company has raised the invoice but related service will be given in subsequent reporting period

Other Tncome

Dividend income from investments is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.

Interest income is recognized on time propertion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable rate of interest.
Income from current investments are recognized periodically based on fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) as on reporting
date. Retained gains / (losses) are recognized on the date on which these investments are sold.

Taxation

Current tax Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or
directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
lax regulations are subject o inlerpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate. Advance taxes and provisions for current
income taxes are presented in the balance sheet after off-setting advance tax paid. Current tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amount and there is an intention to settle the asset and liability on a net
basis.

1052155/
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Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the tax base of assets and liabilitics and their carrying amount in the
financial statements. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all deductible temporary differences. Deferred tax asscts are
recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences could be utilized. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relate to the ltems that are recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in this case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefi ts in the form of
adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal
income tax against which the MAT paid will be adjusted.

provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. These are reviewed at ecach
balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. [f the effeet of the time value of money is matcrial, provisions
are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability, When discounting is
used, the increasc in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be
confirmed enly by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is cither not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. Contingent assets arc neither recognized nor
disclosed in the standalone financial statements.

A contingent liability recognized in a business combination is initially measured at its fair value, Subsequently, it is mcasured at the
higher of the amount that would be recognized in accordance with the requirements for provisions above or the amount initially
recognized less, when appropriate, cumulative amortization recognized in accerdance with the requirements for revenue recognition,

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash that are
subject Lo an insignilicant risk of change in value and having original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, to
be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of balances with banks which arc unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

Financial instruments

All finareial instruments are recognized initially at fair value, Transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset (other than financial assels recorded at fair value through profit or loss) are included in the fair value of the financial
assets. Purchase or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place (regular way trade) are recognized on trade date. While, loans and borrowings and payables are
recognized net of direedly attributable transaction costs, For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial instruments of the
Company are classified in the following categories: non derivative financial assets comprising amortized cost, debt instruments at
fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), equity instruments at FVTOCT or fair value through profit and loss
account (FV'TPL) and non derivative financial liabilities at amortized cost or FVTPL. The classification of financial instruments
depends on the objective of the business model for which it is held. Management determines the classification of its financial
instruments at initial recognition, The classification of financial instruments depends on the objective of the business model for
which it is held. Management determines the classification of its financial instruments at initjal recognition




Non-derivative financial assets

Financial assets at amortized cost A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

(a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows and

(b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on speeified dates to cash flows that arc solely payments of principal and
Interest (SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding.

They arc presented as current assets, except for those maturing later than 12 months after the reporting date which are presented as
non-current assets. Financial assets are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs and subsequently carried at amortized
cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment loss. Amortized cost are represented by trade receivables, security
deposits, cash and cash equivalents, employee and other advances and cligible current and non-current assets.

Debt instruments at FVTOCL A debt instrument is measured at fair value through cther comprehensive income if both of the
lollowing conditions are met:

(a) the objective of the business model is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and

(b) the asset’s contractual cash flow represent SPPI Debt instruments included within FVTOCI category are measured initially as
well as at each reporting period at fair value plus transaction costs.

Fair value movements are recognized in other comprehensive income (OCT). However, the Company recognizes interest income,
impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain/ (loss) in statement of profit and loss. On derccognition of the asset,
cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit and loss. Interest earned is recognized
under the effective interest rate (EIR) model,

Fquity instruments at FVTOCT All equity instruments are measured al fair value. Equity instruments held for trading is classified as
FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value in OCL The Company makes such eleclion on an instrument-by-instrument basis. It (he Company decides to classify an equily
instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividend are recognized in OCI which is not
subsequently recyeled to statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL FVTPL is a residual category for financial assels. Any financial assct which does not meel the criteria for
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as FVTPL. In addition the Company may clect to designate the
financial asset, which otherwise meels amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as FVTPL il doing so climinates or significantly reduces
ameasurement or recognition inconsistency, The Company has not designated any financial asset as FVTPL, Financial assets
included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair values with all changes in the statement of profit and loss.

Non-derivative financial liabilitics

Financial liabilities at amortized cost Financial linbilities at amortized cost represented by borrowings, trade and other payables are
inttially at amortized cost using the effective interest rate methed. (ii) Financial liabilitics at FVTPL Financial liabilities at FVTPL
represented by contingent consideration are measured at fair valye with all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Contributed equity
Cquity share: are classified as equity share capital. Incremental costs directly attributable (o the issuc of new shares are shown in
other equity under securitics premium as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds,

Earnings per share
Basic carnings per share (EPS) are caleulated by dividing the net profit / (loss) alter tax for e yeaFattributable to equity
sharcholders by the weighted average number ol equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by adjusting the number of shares used for basic EPS w ith the weighted average number of
shares that could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are
deemed converted as of the beginning of the year, unless they have been issued at a later date, The diluted potential equity shares
have been adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value i.e. average market value of
outstanding shares. :

105215/




The number of shares and potentially dilutive shares are adjusted for share splits and bonus shares, as appropriate. In calculating
diluted eamings per share, the effects of anti dilutive potential equity shares are ignored. Potential cquity shares are anti-dilutive
when their conversion to equity shares would increase earnings per share or decreasc loss per share

Assets classified as held for sale

The Company classifies non-current assets (or disposal group) as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recoverad
principally through a sale rather than through continuing use. The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded met only when
the assets (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition, subject only to terms that are usual and
customary for sale of such assets (or disposal group), its sale is highly probable; and it will genuinely be seld, not abandoned. The
Company treals sale of the asset (or disposal group) to be highly probable when:

* The appropriate level of management is committed to a plan to scll the asset (or disposal group),

* An active programumed to locate a buyer and complete the plan has been initiated (if applicable),

* The asset (ar disposal group) is being actively marketed for sale at a price that is rensonable in relation to its current fair value,

* The saic is expected 1o quality for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification, and

* Actions required to complete the plan indicate that itis unlikely that significant changes to the plan will be made or that the plan
will be withdrawn,

Non-current assets (or disposal group) held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and the fair value less costs
to sell. Assets and liabilities (or disposal group) classified as held for sale are presented separately in the Balance Shect. Property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortized.

Rounding off amounts
Allamounts disclosed in standalone financial Statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest Lakhs as permilted in
Schedule T of the Act, unless olherwise stated,

Recent Accounting pronouncements

New Accounting pronouncements affecting amounts reperted and / or disclosures in the financial statements.

The Ministry of Corporale Affairs (MCA) has not issued any new standards or amended any existing standards which are effective
for reporting periods beginning on or after | April 2022,




" K2V2 technologies Private Limited

(All amounts in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

" - Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

2. Property, Plant & Equipment and Capital Work-in-progress

Particulars Furniture & Right to Use
Fixtures Assets
(ross carrying amount
Balance as at 1 April 2021 - 87
Additions 8 40
Balance as at 31 March 2022 8 127
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at | April 2021 34
Depreciation for the year 0 47
Balance as at 31 March 2022 0 81
i Carrying amounts (Net)

As at 31 March 2022 8 46

Previous Year

Particulars

Furniture & 7 Right to Use

Fixtures Assets

Gross carrying amount

Balance as at 1 April 2020 - 87

Additions -

Balance as at 31 March 2021 - 87
| Accumulated depreciation 5

Balance as at 1 April 2020 4

Depreciation for the year - 29

Balance as at 31 March 2021 - 34

Carrying amounts (Net)

As at 31 March 2021 - 53

105215/ | 0]
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K2V2 Technologies Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

3. Intangible Assets and Intangible Assets under development

Current Year

Particulars Technical Intangible
know-how Assets under
Internally development
Generated
Gross carrying amount
Balance as at 1 April 2021 - 352
Additions 544 229
Disposals / Capitalised (544)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 544 37
Accumulated amortization
Amortization for the year 27 -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 27 -
Carrying amounts (Net)
Iis at 31 March 2022 ST 37
Previous Year
Particulars Technical Intangible
know-how Assets under
Internally development
Generated
Gross carrying amount
Balance as at 1 April 2020 203
Additions 149
Disposals / Capitalised -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 - 352
Accumulated amortization
Balance as at 1 April 2020 -
Additions - -
Disposals / Adjustments -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 - -
Carrying amounts (Net) - 352
[As at 31 March 2020 J

10521507 |°
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K2V2 Technologies Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

. (All'amounts in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

4. Income Tax Assets

Non-current
Advance Tax » TDS

net of Provision

Total Non-current Other Assety

'

In Muntual Funds

26,901.44 (-)  Units of Axis Ultra Short Term Fund
69,511.83 () Units of Aditya Birla Sun Life Savings Fund
5,665.85 (-)  Units of Kolak Money Matket scheme

Total Investments

0.

Investments (Cur

rent)

Trade Reccivables (Currcnt)

(a) Considered Good - Unecured

(b) Which have significant increase in Credit Risk

Less: Provision for doubtful receivables

Total Trade Receivables

Refer Aging ol Trade Receivables in Note 38 (a)

Cash and cash equivalents (Current)

(a) Cash and Cash equivalents
(i) Balances with Banks

(b) Qther

Inter-corporate deposits with HDFC Limited

In Current Accounts
In Sweep In Fixed Deposit

balances

Total Cash and Cash equivalents

8. Loand and Advances

Current

(a) L.oans and Advances

(i) Considered Good - Unsceured

Loan to Employees

Asat 31
March 2022

As at 31
March 2021

As at
1 April 2020

173 48 9
173 48 9
As at 31 As at 31 As at

March 2022

P §
306
204

513

March 2021

1 April 2020

As at 31
March 2022

As at 31
March 2021

As at
I April 2020

716 457 348
75 33
791 490 348
75 33
716 457 348
As at 31 As at 31 As at

March 2022

March 2021

1 April 2020

171 45 92
73 10 10
244 55 102
300 - -
300 - -
S44 55 102
As at 31 March As at 31 As at 01 April

2022

March 2021

2021

& FRN %
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9.

Other Financial Assels (Current) Asat 31 As at 31 As at

March 2022 March 2021 1 April 2020
(4) Interest acerued on deposits 11
(b) Security Deposits 7 0
(c) Other Financial Asscts 63 - 5
Total 81 0 0

Other Financial Assels mainly consist of Net Receivable amounts against advertisement budget fumd recejvable from customer net of expenses

10.*Other Current Assets

Asat 31 As at 31 As at
(a) Advances recoverable in eash or kind March 2022 March 2021 1 April 2020
(1) Prepaid Expenses 20 I -
(i) Advance paid 1o Suppliers 14 2 -
(i) Ad-ance deposited in Credit card - 7 -
34 8 =

Total Current Other Asscts 34 8 -




IK2V2 Technologies Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

11. Income Tax and Deferred Tax and Other Comprehensive Income

For the year For the year
ended 31 ended 31
Mar 2022 Mar 2021
(a) Current Tax
() Current Income Tax charge - 6
(i) Taxation in respect of carlier years 2
(b) Deferred Tax
Relating 1o origination and reversal of temporary differences (178) (1)
Income Tax expense reported in the Statement of Profit or Loss {178) 5
(¢) Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
() Re-measurements on defined benefit plan (net of tax) (rn (2)
-—
(n (2)
As at 31 Asat 31 Asat1
March 2022 Mareh 2021 April 2020
() Deferred Tax
() Deferred Tax Asset (DTA) 193 2 1
(i) Deferred Tax Liability (DTL) (1m - E
Net Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities) 183 2 1

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit for the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 Mareh 2021

For the year For the year
ended 31 ended 31
Mar 2022 Mar 2021
Accounting Profit Before Tax (686) (29)
(a)  Tax as per Income Tax Act (173) [€)]
(b) - Tax Expense
(i) Current Tax " 6
(i) Deferred Tax (178) )
(iii) Taxation in respect of earlicr years & B
Total Tax Fxpense (178) 35
(c) Difference (a) - (b) 5 (12)
(d) Tax Reconciliation
() Dis-allowances Provision for Doubtful debts -9
(i) Disallowances under section 43B 5 1
(i) IND AS Transition adjustments e -4

Total




Balance Sheet
As at 31
March 2021

Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities are as follows
Asatl
April 2020

As at 31

Deferred Tax A Liabilities) in relati
eferved Tax Assels / (Lia ilities) in relation to March 2022

Deferred Tax relates to the following: DTL/ (DTA)

(2)  Property, Plant and Equipment (¢2))] - -
(b)Y Provision for doubtful debts 19 . 5
() Dis-allowanee ws 438 of the Income Tax Act 5 2 1
(dY  Income tax loss 170 " 5
Net Delerred Tax Assets/(Linbilities) 183 2 I

Significant components of net Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities for the year ended 31 Mareh 2022 are as follows

Movement in temporary differcnces As at Recognized in Recognized in Asat
1 April Prolit or Loss Other Compre- 31 March
2021 during 2021-22 hensive Tncome 2022

durine 2021-22
Property, Plant and Equipment - (n 5 (1
Provision for doubtlul advances = 19 . 19
Dis-allowance v's 4313 of the Income Tax 2 6 (3) 5
Income tax loss & 170 - 170
2 184 (3) 183
Movement in temporary differences As at Recognized in Recognized in Asat
1 April Prolit or Loss Other Compre- 31 March
2020 during 2021-22 hensive Income 2021

dorine 2020-21

Property, Plant and quipment

Provision for doubtful advances
Dis-allovance u's 4313 of the Income Tax
Act
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K2V2 Technologies Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

13, Other Equity As at 31 As at 31 Asatl
) ; March 2022 March 2021 April 2020
1. Reserves and Surplus
(1)  Sccurities Premium
(i) Opening balance - -
(i) Addition during the year 1,798 -
{iii)  Less : Share Issuc Expenses (13) -
(1v)  Closing Balance 1,785 - -
(b Free Reserves 322 322 322
(e)  Sharc options Outstanding account
(1) Opening balance 0 -
(i) Addition during the year 1 0
(1) Closing Balance 1 0 .
(d)  Retained Earnings
() Opening balance 90 129
(i) Effect of Prior year items - (3)
(ili)  Restated Opening Balance 90 126
(v} Net Profit/ (Loss) for the year (508) (34)
{iv)  Comprehensive income for the year (11 (2)
(429) 90 129
Adjustments
(N Equity Dividend - - -
(i) Tax on Equity Dividend - - -
Closing Balance (429) 90 129
Total Other Equity 1,679 412 451

. Secarities Premium: The amount received in excess

recognized in Seeurities Premium Account,

. Free Reserve: Created persuent to the Schem
Technologies Private Limited (The demerged Company) and K2v?2 Technologies Private Limited

approved by NCLT

o Retained Earnings: Retained carnings are the profits tl

of face value of the equily shares is

¢ of Demerger between Amura Marketing

hat the Company has earned till date,

Share options outstanding account : used to record the fair value of equity-seitled share based payment
tran:actions. The amounts recorded in this account are transferred to share premium upon exercise of stock
options. In case of cancellation of opticns, corresponding balance is transferred to retained earmnings




S K2v2 Technologies Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
" (All amounts in T Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

14, Financial Liabilities: Borrowings Maric\l: ;CO;; Mar[:; ;:};; Ap!:; ;;g:
Non-current
(unsceured)
Term Loan from Banks 19 28 -
Loan From Director 62 50 .
Total Non-current Borrowings 81 78 z

Terms ol L.oans
Term Loan from bank : Business Loan from Bank s Unsecured Loan taken from HDFC Bank and repayable in 36 monthly installments

starting from April 2021
Loan amounting to Rs.50 Lakhs from a Dircctor (Supriya Kotnis - Dircctors upto 25.08.2021 ) is unsecured loan repayble in 48
monthly installments starting from July 2021 with moratorium period of 6 months.

Loan ameunting to Rs.45 Lakhs from a Director (Supriya Kotnis - Dircctors up to 25.08.2021 ) is unsecured loan repayable in 6
monthly irslalments starting from February 2023. With moratorium period of 18 months,

As at 31 As at 31 As at 01
Current March 2022 March 2021 April 2021
(a) Loans repayable on demand
(i) From Banks (sccured) / working capital from Banks (S - 97 0
(b} Current maturities of Long-term borrowings 44 22 0
Total Current Borrowings 44 119 -
Total Borrowings 125 197 -
o Terms of Cash credit: Cash credit is sceured by exclusive charge on Company's book debts and
receivables
Asat31 As at 31 Asat 01
March 2022 March 2021 April 2021
IS Lease Liabilities
Non - Current - 32 63
Current 55 31 21
55 63 84

Refer Note 37on Disclosure w.r.t. leases




K2V2 Technologies Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

16. Provisions As at 3] Asat3l  Asat1 April
March 2022 March 2021 2021
Non-current
ta)  Provision for Employes benefils 76 45 30
Total Non-current Provisions 76 45 30
Current
{8)  Provision for Employee benefits 1 s .
Total Current Provisions l % N
Total Provisions 77 5 20
17. Trade Payables As at 31 Asat 31 Asat 01
March 2022 March 2021 April 2020
(a)  Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small enterprises 50 2 8
(b)  Total outstanding dues other than Micro and Small enlerprises 423 33 44
Total Trade Payables 473 85 52

Refer Aging of Trade Payables in Note 38 (b)

18.  Other Financial Liabilities

As at 31 As at 31 Asat 01
) March 2022 March 2021 April 2020
Current
Interest on Borrowings .
Interest Scerued but not due 4 2 )
Corporate Credit Card Dues Payable 1 6 i
Iimployee dues pajable (Net) 53 20 47
Provision for Service Rejection - 12 -
Total Current Other Financial Liabilities 08 40 47
19.  Other Liabilities As at 31 Asat3l  Asatl April
March 2022 March 2021 2021
Current
(a) Pre-received Income 76 46 -
() Advance from customer 16 7 -
(c) Statutory dues payuble 73 37 26
(d) Provision lor Expenses 200 40 33
Total Current Other Liabilties 371 130 79

Total Other Liabilties 371 130 79




K2V2 Technologies Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Al amounts in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise staled)

20. Revenuc from Operations

21

For the year

For the year

ended 31 ended 31

March 2022 March 2021

()  Sale of services 2,107 1,143
Total Revenue from Operations 2,107 1,143.00

Other Income

For the year

For the year

ended 31 ended 31

March 2022 March 2021

(a) Interest income 17 I
(b) Net Gain on Mtutal Funds 13 -

Total Other Tneome 30 [

For the year

For the year

22. Employce Benefits Expense

ended 31 ended 31

March 2022 March 2021

(a) Salarics, wages, bonus and other allowances 1,483 660

(b)Y Contribution to provident fund, ESI and other funds 46 22

(¢)  Gratuity expenscs 18 13

(&) Compensated absences expenses 5 3

(c) LEmployce Compensation Expense 0 0

(d) Staff welfare cxpenses 29 8
Total Employee Benefits Expense 1,581 706

23.

24,

Finance Costs

For the year
ended 31
March 2022

For the year
ended 31
March 2021

(1) Interest expense 19 4
(b) Interest on lease liability il 11
Total Finance Costs 30 15

Depreciation and Amortization Expense

FFor the year
ended 31
March 2022

For the year
ended 31
March 2021

(a) Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment 0 -
(b) Depreciation on Right to Use Assels 47 29
(c) Amortization of Intangible Assets 27 "
Total Depreciation and Amortization Expense 74.00 29.00

&/ FRN \¢
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25. Other Expenses For the year For the year

ended 31 ended 31
March 2022 March 2021
Advertising/Promotional 429 13
Repair and maintenance 2 I
Office Rent 6 -
Server and laptop Rent 211 108
Recruitment Cost 10 6
Bank charges 12 10
Sell.Do Software Running Cost 23] 171
Legal and professional fees Gl 38
Bad Debts Written off 42 13
Provision for Doubtful Debts 42 33
Power & Fuel 15 4
Audit Fees 8 3
Rates and Taxes * - -
Printing and Stationery 3 -
Telephone FExpense 1 1
Software License fecs 26 13
Travelling & Accommodation 25 5
Office xpense 14
Total Other Expenses 1,138 423
Details of payments to Auditors For the year For the year
ended 31 ended 31
March 2022 March 2021
(a) Statutory Audit fees g 2
(b) Tax Audit fees I |
{¢) Limited Review o) }
(d)y Other Services q 1
(¢) Reimbursement of expenscs 0 0
Total payments to Auditors 8

105215/
\ W100057




K2V2 Technologies Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

26 Earning Per Share

F Parti For the year ended For the year ended
articulars
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021

Net Loss After Tax (519) (36)
Number of Equity Shares:

As at the Beginning of the year 25,920 25,920

Issued during the year 20,735

As at the end of the year 46,655 25,920
Weighted average Equity Shares
outstanding at the end of the period 38,361 25,920
Eftcets of dilution on account of

Stock options granted under K2V?2
Technologies Employees Option
Plan 160 72
Weighted average number of equity
shares adjusted for the effect of

dilution 38,521 25992
Earning per Share of Re. 10/- each.

Basic (1,353) (139)
Diluted* (1,353) (139)

*Due to loss in FY 2020-21 and FY 2021-22, diluted EPS has become anti-dilutive in
nature.




27 Related Party Disclosures

Names of Related party and nature of relationship where control exists as identified and certified by the
Company as on 31 March 2022

Sr. No Name of entity Nature of relationship Country
L 1 [ Aurum Proptech Ltd. Parent India
(I) Other related parties with whom company had transactions during the year
Sr, No Name of entity Nature of relationship Country
KMP of entity has
significant influence over

1/ Amura Marketing Technologies Private Limited entity India
2|Au1’um Softwares and Solutions Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary India
L 3‘Monk Tech Labs Pte. Ltd., Singapore (TheHouseMonk') | Fellow Subsidiary Singapore J
(I Key Managerial Personnel
Directors
’ Appointed w.e.f25 Marm
1|Ketan Prakash Sabnis 2019
Appointed w.e.f 25 March
2(\’;’1myak Katkar 2019
‘ Resigned w.e.f September
3{Supriya Vikram Kotnis 2021
’ Appointed w.e.f 30th
4| Vikram Purshottam Bapat March 2022
Appointed w.e.f 30th
5|Ajit Ravindra Joshi March 2022
‘ Appointed w.e.f 30th
6/Kunal Karan September 2021
Resigned w.e.f 30 March
7|Srirang Yashwant Athalye 2022




Transactions with Details of transactions with related party

() Sale of Services
Year Ended 31 March Year Ended 31
Sr. No Particulars 2022 March 2021
I [Amura Marketing Technologies Private Limited 24 35
2| Aurum Proptech Ltd. 1 0
S|Aurum Softwares and Services Private Limited 7 0
6| Monk Tech Labs Pte Litd. 8 0
(IT) Reimbursement of Expenscs
Year Ended 31 March Ycar Ended 31
Sr. No Particulars 2022 March 2021
I|-Amura Marketing Technologies Private Limited 417 4
2|Ketan Sabnis 4 0
3’\}”(1‘[!711 Kotnis 2 0
| -'I[Aurum Proptech Ltd 16 0

(ITn ]Business Transfer Related Consideration
Year Ended 31 March Year Ended 31
Sr, No Particulars 2022 March 2021
I [Amura Marketing Technolagics Private Limited - 97
(Iv) Remuneration to Key Managerial Personncl
Year Ended 31 March  |Year Ended 31
Sr. No Particulars 2022 March 2021
I |Ketan Prakash Sabnis 61 42
2| Vinayak Katkar 60 30
3[Supriva Vikram Kotnis - 6
4,Kimn Narasarcddy - 7
I S!Vikmm Kotnis 65 _ 0]




(V1) Other Benefits to key Managerial Personnel
Year Ended 31 March Year Ended 31
Sr. No For the year ended march 31 2022 2022 March 2021
Provident Fund
1{Kctan Prakash Sabnis 0 0
2| Vinayak Katkar 0 0
(X) Transfers under Finance arrangements
Year Ended
Sr. No Particulars Year Ended March 22 March 21
I|Loan taken from Ms, Supriya Kotnis 45 50
2{Finance cost incurred / Paid 2 |
3|Repayiment of Loan j
Amount Due/To [rom related Party
[ Year Ended
Sr. No Particulars Year Ended March 22 March 21
1 Amounts Due:
Ketan Sabnis (reimbursement of expense) 4 6
Aurum Proptech Ltd. (Service Availed) 11 0
Vikram Kotnis (reimbursement of expensc) 2 0
Amura Marketing Technologies Private Limited (Service
Availed) 21 44
Supriys Vikram Kotnis 89 0
2{Amounts Reccivable:
Aurum Soliwares and Solutions Private Limited (Service
rendered) 8 =
Monk Tech Labs Pte. Ltd., Singapore ('TheHouseMonk")
(Scrvice rendered) 2 s
Amura Marketing Technologies Private Limited (Service
rendered) 9 -

Aurum PropTech Ltd. (Service rendered)
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Reconciliation of opening and clasing balances of the present value of the defined benetit oblivation:

=}

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars

Acturial Assumption

Discount rate (per annum) 6.96% 6.26%
10% for first sfirst two  10% for first two
Rate of increase in salary two years and vears and 8% years and 8%
8% thereafler thereafter thereatier
Expected average remaining working lives of employees (vears) 9.48 9.54
return on plan assets 0 0

6%

For the Year
ended 31

For the Year
ended 31 March

For the Year
beginning 01

March 2022 April 2021
Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation
Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year 38.55 28.82
Current service cost 15.90 11.69
Settlements
Interest on defined benefit obligation 2.35 1.76
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations (Financial Assumption) -4.66
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations (Experience) 18.60 1.58
Benefits paid -3.49 -5.30
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 67.26 38.55 29
gsmm in fair value of plan asscts J
Fair value of plan agsets - opening 224 4.29
Expected return on plan assets 0.14 0.27 4
Employer's contribution Settlements 4.94 3.00
Benefits paid -3.4 -5.30
Actuarial gain/(loss) 0.06 -0.02
Fair value of plan assets - closing 3.90 2.24 4
Expensc recognized as employce benefits expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Current service cost 16 12 29
Intcrest on net defined benefit liability / (asser) 2.35 1.76 -
Total 18 3 29
Income/(loss) recognized as OCI in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Remeasurements during the year due to:
Changes in financial assumptions 14 2 -
Changes in demographic assumptions - - -
Experience and other adjustments - - 3
Actual return on plan assets less expected interest on plan assets - - -
Total 14 2 -

105215W/ |
\ W100057 /

05215Wy | v

1
W1i0c057 / =




£G300LAN
/ANG1ZE01

o

M

i

¥l

¥l

VUG NUEIRG Ul P2ZIUB0521 QT JaN

Tea& oy Suunp pred junoury

Teak oy Sutinp paSieyn

souejeg Sulwadpy

12AUS ddueleg oy wy pazindedat souligey pue S1assy

EENE 1€ papud 1€ papud

ABIX 2L A0 aEOX Ay 104

HPWIYSEIUS 2ava T - sue(d jjpuaq pauga(g

(Stpre up sy)

S—

01 Pl LT SIBD X ()] 2A0QY
G Ll i€ 01019 tea
£ t L S Ima g
z £ 9 LN
T £ s JIRLEFN
[4 C t TIea g
[ T ¥ IELEPN
‘L€ YMEIA Popud ama X
0202 L[zoz 20T Yyoaepy Slejnonaeyg

1ady [ Sutwsaq| yaaey ¢ papus I€ popud

ABDX 23 X0,] B dyp o[ awax Ay oy

(swieT ug sy)

SuonesIqo yysuaq paumyap o apgoad dnanyepy
€ %01 (42 %90°6 8L %8701 siutod siseq Q] +
9z %6" ¢ %S1'8 Y YovS L~ swod siseq g1 -
Lrees ur aseaou jo ey
9z %06~ S¢ %S 176~ 19 %99°8- " switod siseg oo +
43 Sl £y %%E8°01 v %S1°01 siutod siseq Q7 -

2)RI JUNODSI(]
uonesIqo Jauaq pauyap uo eduy

Swerursy) | (%) ug

(SPET U sy) | (%) uy

GerTUCSY) T (%) ug

020z 10 ady 3e 5y

1Z07 ‘1€ YIBN 1B SV

CTOT “1€ UYDARIA 1B SV

201 1UNOISIP 2

o~

- MO[9q paysruing st suondwinsee TUEDLIUBIS 10 SI195

0

SIB(NINIB g

[BUE AVALISUDS DATTR)IUROD V7 “aseanau Gees paadxo pue
18 0} aalIsUas Afteinonted ore sinsa wonws 190 1RuRq 21 yarym o1 suondummsse eiwnon 9% oy | suondumsse

snjdesSowop ut soSueys [[ets 01 danteuns ssap Afjeand§ s s1auDq asagy Surpiaotd 3o 1500 2 pue epd wns dung e s Amjeiny

sisd[ruy Quanisusg
tead 1Xau apy Ul puny syl 01 uennqLiue) poxadxy
uonnqriuos pajsodxyy

IVUS duERY UL PIZIUBOIIT ANqE] 19N
s1osse ue(d jo anjea ney
UOUBRIqO 1jounq paurjap PAPUNY JO dNjBA TS0 [

SOUS 2ORRIRET O i prziefoans san

RS RINAY

—

(X1



-

30 Explanation of transition to Ind AS

i)

These are Company's first financial statements prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notified
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 3]st
March, 2021 and balance sheet as at Ist April, 2020 (date of transition), the Company has adjusted amounts reporled
previeusly in firancial statements prepared in accordance with Indian GAAP. This note explains the principal adjustments
made by the Company in restating its Indian GAAP financial statements, including the balance sheet as at st April, 2020 and
the financial statements far the vear ended 11 st Mareh 2021

A explanction of how the transition from Indian GAAP 1o Ind AS has affected the Company's financial position, financial
performance is set out in the following tables and notes that accompany the tables. The reconciliations include-

i) Reconciliation of the Balance sheet
i) Reconcitiation of tota} comprehensive income for the year ended 31st March 2021;
iii) Reconciliaton of equity as at Ist April 2020 and 31st March, 2021

There are no material adjustments to the cash flow statements.

Reconciliation of the Balance sheet

s

31 Mareh 2021 01 April 2020
Indian GAAP | Effect of Ind AS |Indian GAAP| Effect of Ind AS
transition transition
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 0 0
0

Righl-oftuse assels 0 53 53 0 82 82
Capital v ork-in-progress 0 0 0 0
Intangible assets 0 0 0 0
Intangible as-cts undor development 352 352 203 203
Finangial assat 0 0
(i) Investments 0 0 0 0
Non-current tix assets (ne(} 0 0
(i1) Loans 0 0
(1ii) Others 0 0
Deferred tax assets (net) 2 2 [ 1
Income Tax Assets 48 48 9 9
Total non-cusrent asscts 402 53 455 213 82 295
Current assels
Financial asscts
(i) Investments - 0 - 0
(ii) Trade receivables ( ) 457 457 348 348
(i) Cash and eash cquivalents 55 55 102 102
(iv) Bank balance other than (iii) above - 0 - 0
(v) Loans (C) - 0 1 ]
(vi) Others (1o be specified) 0 0 0 0
Other current assets 3

512 - 520 45] 451
Total Assets 914 53 975 664 82 746
EQUITY
Liguity share capital 3 3 3 3
Other cquity 458 -46 412 477 -26 45]

461 -46 415 480 =26 454
LIABILITIES
Noun-current liabilities
Firancial lahilitics
(1) Borrowines 78 78 - 0
(1) Lease Linbilities - 32 32 - 63 () 3 e
Provision:s 9 36 45 6 24 AR P%

87 68 . 155] 6 87) [ eppy
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Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 119 119 a 0
(11) Trade pa; ablcs
a) dues of micro enterprises and small enferprises 2 2 8 8
b) creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 383 83 44 44
(it1) Other Bnancial liabilities 40 40 47 47
(iv) Lease Liabilities - 3] 3] . 21 31
Other current liabilities 130 130 79 79
Provisions - 0 % 0
374 31 405 178 21 199
| Total Equity and Liabilitics 922 53 975 664 82 746

ity Reconciliation of the statement profit and loss and other comprehensive income

31 March 2021

Indian GAAP | Effect of Ind AS

Particulars transition

INCOMNIE

Revenue from operations 1,143 1143
Other income 1 ]
Total income 1,144 1144

EXPENSES

Employee henefit ¢wpenses 716 (10) 706
Finance costs 23 (8) 5
Depreciation and aimortisation expenses 29 29
Other expenses 420 3 423
Total Expenses 1188 -15 1173

Prolit/ (Loss) Belore Tax
Tax Expense

Current Tax 6 6

Deferred Tax -1 -1
Total Tax Expense 3 5
Profit/ (Loss) for the year 1.183 =15 1168
Other Comprehensive Income
(i) Re-measurciments of net defined benefit liability s ) -2
(i) Taves on re-measurements of net defined benefit liabilit - 0
Total Other Comprehensive Income 1,183 -17 1166

1) ation of Other Equity
31 March 1 April 2020

2021
Equity o5 per Indias GAADP 461 480
Adjustments to cquity under previous GAAP
IND AS 116 Impact (12) (n
Defined Penefit oblizaton on Gratuity (34) (25)
{46) (26)
Equity as per Ind AS 415 454

Nofes
| Employee benefit expenses - actuarial gains and losses and return on plan assets
Under Indian GAAP. actuarial gains and losses and return on plan assets on post-employment defined benefit
plans are recopnised imn cdintely in statement of profit and loss. Under Ind AS, remeasurements which
comprise of actuanal gains and losses, return on plan assets and changes in the effect of assel cetling, ilany,
with respect to post-employment defined benefit plans are recognised immediately in other comprehensive
income (OCT). Furlher, remeasurements recognised in OCI are never reclassified to statement of profit and




2 Investmet in Mutual Funds
Under Indian GAAP, investments in Mutual funds held as eurvent assets arc valued at cost or market valuc
whicheyor is lower. Under Ind AS, it is treated as held for trading and is fuir valued at cach reorting date and
classiicd at fair value through profit and loss account (FVTPL).

3 leases
Under Indian GAAP, Leases which does not meet defination of Finance Lease are treated as operating Leases
and Expense is recognised on straight line basis over the lease period. Under Ind AS, it is treated as Right to
Use Asset and Lease Liability is recognised using fair value approch and Depreciation on Right to Use Asscts
and Finanee cost on lease Liabilty is recognised over the term of lease (Exception is available for Low value
Assets . Lower periad Lenses).

Priod Period Items
Under Indian GAAP, Period ltems are disclosed seperately in the year in which they decled. Under Ind AS, it

4 is given etleet in which those relate

5 Reclassification
Appropriate reclsifieation adjustments have been made to suit the Ind AS presentation requirements,
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35 Equily Steck option Plan
“ K2V2 Technologies Employees Option Plan 2020

The Company has intreduced employee stock option scheme. This employee equity-settled compensation scheme is known as K2v32 Technologies Employees
Option Plan. This plan came into {orce from st August 2020, The employee stock oplion scheme is approved and authorized by the Board of Directors, The
Board will have the discretion and authority to select the Eligible Employees from among the Employees to whom Options are to be granted from time to time
under this Plan.Also, the terms of the option shall not be same for each Eligible employce, The Board at any time amend, discontinue or terminate the Plan or any
part or portion thereof at any time, Provided that any such amendment, discontinuation or termination that would impair the rights of or is detrimental to the
interests of the Option Helder shall not, to that extent, be cffective. The above umendment, discontinuation or termination shall not affect options already granted.
The aggregate number of Equity Shures, which may be issued under the Plan, shall not exceed 518 (i.c. Five Hundred Eighteen) Equity Shares of face value of
Rs.10/- cach.

Against each Stoch Option 1 Equity Share of Rs.10/- cach having no exercise price, shall be issued if conditions specified in Grant letter are fulfilled .The
Viating Period shall commenee from the date of Grant and shall not exceed beyond 4 (four) years from the date of Grant. The Vesling may oceur in tranches as
may be decided by 1he Board. Provided however that the Vesting Period shall not be less than | {one) year fiom the date of the Grant. The exact vesting period
applicabic 1o cach granz shall be stated in the grant letter. The Exercise Period shall commence from the date of Yesting and can extend upto 5 (five) years from
the date of grant of O;tions or such olher period as may be decided by the Board and stated in the Grant Letier, The Vested options can be exercised by applying
10 the Company during the Excreise Period, by way of the Excrcise Application. In case the Option is nal exereised within the Exercise Period, the Options will
lapse, without any obligations whatsoever on the Company the Board, and no rights or claims will subsist afler that date with the employce. The shares arising
out of exercise of *ested options shall not be subject to any lock-in period as follows, Till the time Company does not get its Equity Shares listed on any
recegnized steck exchange or any Investor has expressed his willingness for buying out 100% equity, the ESOP Sharcholders and the Nominees or legal heirs, as
the case may be, shall net be entitled 10 and shall not dilute thejr sharcholding in the Company by way of sale, conveyance, exchange or transfer in any manner
whatsaever without « written approval from the Board for the same. The Fair Value accounting method used [or share based payment plan.

Movement During the year for K212 Technologies Employees Option Plan

As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
“{L‘Ig}.]m] :l.verage Weighted average
exercise price per | . ? 1 . .
; Number of options | exercise price per | Number of options

share per option ) e oy
T @ share per option (3)
Outstanding at the beginnine of the
period 10 72 - 0
Granted during the peri 10 88 10 T gy
Forfeited / expocied to be Ipased during
the period 10 6 10 17
Exercised durine the period - » w .
Erpired during the peric ! - - - u
Outstariing at the end of th period 10 154 10 72
Exercisable ot the end of the perind - - s -

Amount of Employce Compensation expense recognised lor employee services received during the year

: As on 31st March As on 31st March
| Particulars 2022 202)

Ffixg: cnse arising frem cquity seitled share based payment transaction ] 0

Fair Yalue of Option Granted
The fair value ef the options granted is mentioned below as per vesting pericd, The fair value of the options is determined using Black-Scholes-Merton model

which 1akes into ageount the exercise price, the term of the option (time to maturity), the share price as at the arant date and expecled price volatility (standard
deviation) of the underlyir. » shure, the expected dividend vield and risk-free interest rate for the term of the option,

Fair value and ascumptions for the cquity-settled grants

Particulars Oct-21 Oct-22 Oct-23 Qct-241
Share Price in Rs. 1599 1599 1599 1599
Standard Deviation{ " olatality)* 0.01% 0.01% 0.01% 0.01%
Exercise Price in Rs, 10 10 10 10
Dividend Yield 0% 0% 0% 0%
Fair Value of Option (Rs) 1591 1591 1591 1592

Rationale for principle variables used
Velalility is & measure of the amount by which a price is expected to fluctuate during a period based on the historic data. Since the company is closely held,
volatility is assumed to be nzaing zero ie. 0.01%.

\
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36 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - FAIR VALUE
Accounting classification and fair values

The fullowing tables show the carrying amounts and fair value of assets and financial liabilities with its classification

As at March 2022 As at March 2021 As at 1 April 2020

f Amortized Amortized Amortized
iSr. No|Fair Value and Carryving amounts FVTPL Cost FYTPL Cost F¥TPL  [Cost
|
a) FINANCIAL ASSETS - NON CURRENT = "
) FINANCIAL ASSETS - CURRENT

I Investments 513 - . - 4 .

2 Trade Recaivables = 716 . 457 . 348
i 3 Cash and Cash equivalents - 244 - 55 . 102
I 4 Buank Buaicnce other than (if) above - 300 5 - " s

5 Loans und Advances - 1 - - < 1

6 Other Financial Azsets - 81 - 0 - 0
|
,:} FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - NON CURRENT
; I Borrowinys - 81 - 78 -
i 2 Lease Liahilitics - - u 32 63
! 3 Other Financial Liabilities " ”
|
Fd) FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - CURRENT
! ] 44 - 119 -
{2 Trade Payables s 473 - 85 52
|3 Other Financial Liabilitics : 68 - 40 47
f 4 Lease [iabilites - 55 - 31 21
]
L.

i) Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the linancial instruments that are (a)
recognised and messured at fair value and {b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair vahies are disclosed in the financial
stalements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its
financial instruments into the thice levels preseribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of cach level follows underneath
the table.

Financial assets measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements as at 31 March 2022

Financial assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal
Financial Investments at FVPL,

Liquid mutual funds 513 - - 513
Total linancial assets 513 - - 513

Financial assets measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements as at 31 March 2021

Financiul aisets Level [ Level 2 Level 3 Tatal
|Finaneial Investments at FVPL
Liguid mutual [unds % . o n

Total financial assets i - “ i
Financial assets measured at air valye - recurring fair value measurements as at 01 April 2020

Financial assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial [nvestments at FVPI,

Ligquid mutual funds - . U .
Total financial asscts




Valuation Techniques used to determine fajy valuc include
- Liguid mutual funds at NAV'sdeclared / Quoted

Level T: Level | hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices in active markets. Quotes would include
ratesfvaluesaluation references published periodically by BSE, NSE etc. basis which trades take place in a linked or unlinked
active market. This includes traded bonds and mutual funds, as the case may be, that have quoted price/rate/value,

Level 2: The fuir value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market are determined using valuation techniques
which maximise the use of obscrvable market data (either directly as prices or indirectly derived fiom prices) and rely as little as
possible on centity-specific estimates, 1f all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in leve] 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is
the case fur unlisted equity securities, contingent consideration and indemnilication asset included in lovel 3;

if) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

The carr, inz amounts of trade recei ables, trade payables, other financial assets/liabilities, loans and cash and cash equivalents are
considerad to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

(]



37 Disclosures - Lease arrangements
Maturity Analysis of lease Liability

As at As at o
Particulars March March Anril 2020
2022 2021 |°P
Within 1 vear 35 31 21
After 1 vear - 32 63
Furure cash outflows for all lease assets
As at As at
Particulars March March AAS'I?’;OIZO
2022 2021 |2PH
Within 1 vear 59 58 32
After T year up to 5 years - 14 72
Muren | Mo | Asacd
o April 2020
Lease liability movement 2022 2021
Transition adjustment 63 84
LAdd - Addition during the year 40 -
Add : Interest on lease liability 11 11
Less: Lease rental payments 58 32
Closing balance 55 63 84

Company has cnetered in to 1ease Agreement / Contract with Amura Marketing
Technologies Limited for Use of Premices

Expense on short term Iease Rs Lakhs 6 Lakhs




38 Additional Disclosure as required by schedule 111

(a) Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule As on 31st March,2022

s

6
: Less th 1-2 2-3 More than
Sr. No. |Particulars Unbilled Not Due 4y el months - n Total
6 months Years Years 3 Years
1year
Undisputed
1} |considered good 6 201 462 39 8 - 715

~hich have significant
increase in credit risk

3) | creditimpared - s = 5 R

Disputed
4) |considered good - - - - 1 0 1
hich have significant
5) lincrease in credit risk - - - - 3 24 27

6) |creditimpared
Less Provision for

Doubtful receivable (9) (32) (34) (75)
Total 6 201 462 39 8 0 716
Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule As on 31st March,2021
6
Less tha 1-2 2-3 M h
Sr. No. |Particulars Unbilled Not Due| > "an months - Qie khan Total
6 months Years Years 3 Years
1vyear
Undisputed
1) |considered good 12 142 197 22 4 377
which have significant
) [¥hich have signifc 14 12 19 46
increase in credit risk
3) | creditimpared 1 1 2
Disputed
4)  |considered good
which have significant
5)  |increase in credit risk 0 9 23 30 62
6) |credit impared 7 2
Lss Provision for
Doubtful receivable -2 -13 -18 -33
Total 12 142 220 46 37 - - 457

FRN
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(b) Trade Payable Ageing Schedule As on 31st March,2022 ( From due date )

| Less More
i 1-2 2-3
Sr. No. |Particulars Not Due than1 than 3 Total
Years Years
years Years
Undisputed
1) |MSME 3l 19 - - - 50
2) |Others 111 310 0 1 = 422
disputed - - - - - -
3) |MSME - = e 2 3 -
4)  |Others - il - - - 1
Total 143 330 0 1 - 473

Trade Payable Ageing Schedule As on 31st March,2021 { From due date )

Less e 2.3 More
Sr. No. |Particulars Not Due than1 than 3 Total
Years Years
years Years
i Undisputed
1) INSME 2 2
2) |Others 64 18 il 83
disputed -
3)  [MSME P 5
4) |Others
Total 66 18 1 - - 85

(c) Aging of Capital-Work-in Progress and intangible assets under development As on 31st March, 2022

| Mor
i lessthanl | 1-2 2-3 g
Sr. No. {Particulars than3 | Total
years Years Years
g Years
1}  |Coilaboration tool ;

Kylas Technical Know 37 37
Total 37 - - - 37

Aging of Capital-Work-in Progress and Intangible assets under development As on 31st March, 2021

T -
More
st Less than 1 1-2 2-3
Sr. No. |Particuiars than 3 Total
years Years Years
Years

Kylas Software

4 Technical Know how
under development 150 203 352
Total 149,72 | 202,75 - - 352.46

There are no Intangible assets under development, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost
compared to its original plan

Relationship with Struck off Companies
(d)lTo the best of our knowledge, Company does not have transactions with stuck off companies

{e) ROC Charges and returns filed with ROC
The Company has paid all the Registration of charges and also filed all the statutory returns time to time.

(f) Crypto currency or Virtual Currency
The company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.




(g) Disclosures under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006"
Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

As at As at Asatl
March | March April
Particulars 2022 2021 2020
Dues to micro, small and medium suppliers

a. The amounts remaining unpaid to micro

and small suppliers as at the end of the year
- Principal 50 2 8
- Interest 0 0 0

b. The amount of interest paid by the

coempany as per the Micro Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

(MSMED Act, 2006) along with amount of
¢. The amount ot interest due and payahle

for the period of delay in making payment
{which have been paid but beyond the 0 0 0
appointed day during the year) but without

adding the interest specified under MSMED
d. Ihe amount ¢t interest accrued and

remaining unpaid at the end of each 0 0 0
accounting year.

e. The amount of further interest remaining
due and payable even in the succeeding
years, until such date when the interest dues 0 0 0
as above are actually paid to the small
enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as




Additional Diselosres required by Schedule 111

=t Key Ratias
’ 1st 3 . ; ] '-0-Y chy 1
Sr. No.|Ratios Formula and workings l\;lsr:;:‘i;n I\;\:rzz. 21;;] Variance Variance % Reasons for ¥ Ozgu/‘:h-‘mgc more than
1 Current ratio : Current Assets / Current Liabilities 1.87 1.28 0,58 45%| Increase in current assets
Current Assels 1.889 520
Curcent Lisblitizs 1,012 405
2 |Debt-Equity ratio : Taetal Debrs / Total Sharcholers Equity 0.07 0.40 -0.32 -82%| Increase in Equity
Total Bobts { Curcont = nen-current labilites) 120 164
Total Sharcholars Equity 1,684 415
3 [Debt Serviee Coverage ratio : (6.03) 0.08 -6.11 -7758%%] Loss in curret year
Eamings Available for Debt Service 04 10
! Total Borrosiv xs + Inties: dug 67 127
|
¢4 |Return on Equity ratio :
(Net Earmings / sharche Liess' Equity) x 100 -0.48 -0.08 -0.41 519%| Loss in curret year
Net Eamings (508) (34)
Sharcholders' Equity 1,050 435
5 [Trade Receivables turnover ratio :
Net Credit Sales * Averngs Reveivables 3.59 2.84 0.75 27%|Inercase in Sales due to new business
Net Credit Sales (Net Saies returns ) 2,107.00 1,143.00
Avtrage Reveivables o { Op ning + Closing receivables)2 587 403
6 |Trade Payable turnover ratio -
Inerease in Purchases due to new
Net Credil Purchases £ Averge Payables 4.08 10.42 -6.34 -61% | business
Net Credit Purchascs 1,138 443
Average Payable: & (Op2ning - Closing Payables) 2 27 43
| . .
|7 |Netcapital turnover ratio "
Netanni ! sales © Wor apital 2.40 9.94 -7.54 -75% |Increase in current assels
Netannuod sales 2,107 1,143
i Working capital : { Current Asscts - Current Liabilities ) 877 115
F
{8 INet Profit ratio
f Net Profit/Total revenue x 100 -0.24 -0.03 -0.21 71 %] Increase in Loss
|
|
Net Profit/{Le. ) -508.00 -34.00
| Total revenue 2,107 1,143
|
|
|9 |Return on Capital employed
i EBIT /¢ Lguite = Mot carvent liabilities) .58 -0.32 -0.26 83%|Increase in Loss
|
i ERIT (656) (20)
! (Equity = Non cwsanl liabilities) 1130 63
i
i 10 {Return on Investment
f Net Profit/ Total Equizy © 100 -0.30 -0.08 -0.22 208%% ) Increase in Loss
! Net Profit (508) (34
i Total Equity 1,684 415




38 Figeres "0" indicate less than one lakhs in financial statements

39 Previeus year lieures regrouped whereever necessary

As per our separate repert of even date. On behalf of the Board of Directors
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